

# **Table of Contents**

Committee Information	2
Topic 1: Transitional Justice	2
The Current Situation	2
Victims and Reparations	2
Truth Seeking	6
Case Study - The Syrian Civil War	10
Committee Objectives	12
Bloc Positions	13
Guiding Questions	15
Topic 2: Regulating Multinational Corporations	15
Introduction	15
History and Description of the Issue	16
The Rise of and Exploitative Nature of MNCs:	17
The Scope of International Law	19
Corporate Personhood	20
Responsibility Evasion	20
Bloc Positions	21
Committee Objectives	22
Guiding Questions	23
Closing Remarks	23
Topic 1 Bibliography	24
Topic 2 Bibliography	29

### **Committee Information**

Founded in 1947, the Legal Committee is a subsidiary body of the United Nations General Assembly. The current chair of the Committee is Mozambique Ambassador to the United Nations Pedro Comissário Afonso. Its role in the United Nations is to serve as "the primary forum for the consideration of legal questions." As a General Assembly standing committee, every member state of the United Nations is entitled to having a representative in the Legal Committee. Observer states may also attend and provide input, although they do not have voting rights.

The stated goal of the Legal Committee, as codified in the UN Charter in Chapter IV, Article 13, Section 1, Subsection A, is to "initiate and make recommendations for the purpose of promoting international cooperation and encouraging the progressive development of international law." To that end, the Committee aims to draft comprehensive recommendations on international law. As with all UN Committees, these recommendations are not binding, but can best be understood as creating an ideal framework for how nations should conduct themselves. This makes it essential for delegates to negotiate between establishing clear, powerful guidelines on a realm of international law and making those guidelines popular enough to be adopted by member states.

The Committee has established some of the most influential courts and conventions in the entirety of the United Nations, including the 1998 Rome Statute of the International Criminal Court, which created the International Criminal Court in The Hague to prosecute crimes against humanity. It has also passed the 1961 Vienna Convention on Diplomatic Relations, the 1969 Vienna Convention on the Law of Treaties, and the 1999 International Convention for the Suppression of the Financing of Terrorism.

The Legal Committee receives reports from groups including the International Law Commission, the UN Commission on International Trade Law, and Measures to Eliminate International Terrorism. It adheres to a mixed decision making rule, meaning that many decisions are made by verbal consensus rather than a stricter voting procedure, although formal votes are still possible if the need arises. Recommendations passed by the Legal Committee must be voted on by the General Assembly to be officially adopted.

Delegates should pay particular attention to the text of the International Convention on Forced Disappearances, the Geneva Conventions, and the Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Right to a Remedy and Remediation in this committee, as these are some of the most widely cited treaties pertaining to transitional justice.

## **Topic 1: Transitional Justice**

### The Current Situation

While political rhetoric often centers on how to end these tragedies, there are few guidelines for how nations can rebuild afterwards. This is where transitional justice, or the process by which nations can address histories of human rights violations, becomes of immense importance. How do we hold the perpetrators of widespread abuses accountable for their crimes? How do we ensure that nations learn from their dark histories and protect the rights of their people going forward?

In this topic, delegates will have to create universal guidelines for the implementation of transitional justice, bearing in mind the diverse cases in which it might become applicable. Transitional justice is traditionally broken down into three subcategories: truth-seeking, victim reparations, and prosecutions. Each of these topics is explored in depth in this background guide, both through a broad overview and through the case studies afterwards. Delegates will be expected to address each of these topics in the draft resolution.

When considering truth seeking, how can we gather objective data on human rights abuses that were carried out in secret? As to the treatment of victims, what are appropriate, feasible reparations to provide to them? And what constitutes a fair punishment when we prosecute the masterminds behind such heinous crimes?

## **Victims and Reparations**

When exploring the dynamics of transitional justice, reparations is a natural starting point, as this subject area most directly provides justice for victims of mass human rights abuses. The 'UN Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Right to a Remedy and Reparation for Gross Violations of International Human Rights Law and Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law' includes the right of victims to reparations – although such reparations can take many different shapes and forms. While the concept of providing reparations is quite routine, and victims of even minor crimes are often provided restitutions in the form of monetary compensation, transitional justice poses a unique challenge. The sheer quantity of victims, as well as the magnitude of suffering endured, makes it difficult to establish fair reparations for their suffering. Proving in a court of law that an individual has personally suffered a rights violation can also be near impossible.

Furthermore, requiring victims to offer up evidence that they were abused can often add more trauma to their experience – forcing a victim to recount a rape or torture episode may greatly exacerbate psychological harm. It is sometimes prudent therefore to provide reparations on a mass scale, rather than negotiating them on a case-by-case basis, but such an approach can also potentially minimize the experience of individual victims. Reparations must also be enacted in tandem with other

policy measures such as truth seeking and prosecutions, in order to send a firm message that the abuse victims endured will never be repeated.

Reparations are often overlooked, as victims' rights are not seen as threats to stability. However, most advocacy groups agree that reparations are an essential part of the healing process for an entire country, as they demonstrate that governments take human rights abuses and the consequences of prior actions. Indeed, according to the UN Office of the High Commissioner for Human Rights (OHCHR), "the fundamental obligation of a massive reparations scheme is not so much to return the individual to his or her status quo, but to recognize the seriousness of the violation of the equal rights of fellow citizens and to signal that the successor regime is committed to respecting those rights." Delegates should thus consider reparations not only from a humanitarian standpoint, but also a political one. Making amends to victims, apart from being the ethical course of action, holds "strategic value, in terms of long-term political advantages and producing a sustainable peace."

### **Legal Obligations**

Victims have a right to reparation. This refers to measures to redress violations of human rights by providing a range of material and symbolic benefits to victims or their families as well as affected communities. Reparation must be adequate, effective, prompt, and should be proportional to the gravity of the violations and the harm suffered.

The High Commissioner, on the occasion of the 15th Anniversary of the Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Right to Remedy and Reparation for Victims of gross violations of international human rights law and serious violations of international humanitarian law, highlighted the "catalytic power that genuine remedy and reparations can have on the daily life of victims, families, communities and entire societies."

### **Reparation Measures**

- 1. **Restitution,** which should restore the victim to their original situation before the violation occurred, e.g. restoration of liberty, reinstatement of employment, return of property, return to one's place of residence.
- 2. **Compensation,** which should be provided for any economically accessible damage, loss of earnings, loss of property, loss of economic opportunities, moral damages.
- 3. **Rehabilitation,** which should include medical and psychological care, legal and social services.
- 4. **Satisfaction,** which should include the cessation of continuing violations, truth-seeking, search for the disappeared person or their remains, recovery, reburial of remains, public apologies, judicial and administrative sanctions, memorials, and commemorations.
- 5. **Guarantees of non-recurrence**, which similar to satisfaction, practitioners of transitional justice may aim to implement more sweeping reforms in the wake of rights violations to ensure that they never occur again. This may include constitutional amendments and

restructuring of the political system such as through consociationalism; however, experts admit that, "this is the least developed area... and needs significant research." In other words, delegates have plenty of room to think creatively about solutions.

### Past Implementation of Reparations

The United Nations' 'Basic Principles on the Right to a Remedy and Reparation for Victims of Gross Violations of International Human Rights Law and Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law' establishes that "the party responsible for the violation or abuse is primarily responsible for providing reparation." (OHCHR | Transitional Justice and Human Rights, n.d.). In many cases, this means that the state itself can be held accountable and tasked with providing reparations. However, in practice, holding a state accountable poses a daunting challenge, and enforcing this standard may require intense public pressure by citizens. The state is also often at least partly responsible for major incidents of human rights violations, even if it is not held directly culpable. As it is tasked with safeguarding the basic rights of its citizenry, any large-scale abuse of these rights requires the state to intervene. Failure to do so may also require a state to undertake carefully thought- out reparations.

The process of establishing a system for reparations is quite complex, and requires making often somewhat arbitrary judgment calls. Active efforts should be undertaken to identify as many victims as possible and publicize to affected communities the opportunity to receive at least some reparations. Victims are often identified by a lower standard of evidence than used in most courts of law, a necessity given the nature of widespread rights abuses. For instance, victims of Pinochet's regime in Chile were systematically incarcerated and tortured. Rather than requiring each victim to prove their torture, investigators simply established that the victim had been imprisoned, and then assumed that the victim had also endured some form of torture. Governments can also help the process by lengthening deadlines for victims applying to receive reparations and allowing victims to mail in applications rather than submit them in person.

After establishing who qualifies as a victim, these individuals are typically broken down into categories based on what crimes they have suffered. Such categories typically include such horrific atrocities as rape, torture, kidnapping, and murder. Families of direct victims are often included as a category themselves. Reparations are then tailored to each general type of crime. It is also often necessary to decide who deserves immediate attention, and thus delegates in this committee may need to establish in their draft resolutions which type of crime must be addressed first, and which victims may have to take lesser priority, at least in the short term. The Cost of Reparations Payment amounts to victims vary wildly, and there is little identifiable rhyme or reason to the exact sum paid – indeed, what price tag can be placed on human suffering or human lives? In South Africa, victims of apartheid were paid around US \$5,000 each. In the United States, victims of the Japanese internment camps in World War II were paid US\$20,000. Argentina was more generous, providing US \$224,000 to relatives of los desaparecidos, with President Carlos Menem using the salary of the highest paid government officials

as the basis of compensation. Some argue that reparations differ from typical forms of compensation because it must also make up for a "loss of opportunity".

This opportunity loss is quite difficult to calculate exactly. When a physical object is taken away, a court can order the price of that item (and perhaps quite a bit more) be paid to the victim. Yet when years of a victim's life are taken away by wrongful imprisonment, when a victim suffers from trauma for the rest of their life and thus struggles to find employment, when a victim is killed, it becomes near impossible to quantify that loss. The overall cost of reparations, meanwhile, is similarly varied depending on the overall number of victims and what other social services are provided to them.

Delegates should think about whether victims should receive a lump sum payment or a monthly pension as a result of abuses suffered. Many argue that pensions better enhance quality of life, whereas lump sums give off the distasteful impression that a human life has received an equivalent monetary value. However, pensions provide less immediate relief to victims, and there is no guarantee that a victim will live long enough to receive a payment equivalent to what they might have received in a lump sum payout.

## **Truth Seeking**

In the wake of mass human rights violations, victims and their families often have a very simple request: they want the truth, and they have a right to know it. Casting light on the darkest crimes against humanity cedes some control of the narrative back to victims, preventing sympathizers from minimizing past crimes. This is part of truth-seeking's essential purpose, not only to validate and grieve the suffering endured by all too many souls, but also to perpetually remind the public of the dangers of ignoring tyranny, abuse, and injustice. Truth-seeking aims to collect data and report on the specific details of human rights violations, and through this grisly research ensure that future generations learn from the horrors of their past.

#### **Truth Commissions**

Truth-seeking is typically carried out by specially formed, temporary investigative teams called 'truth commissions.' Delegates in this committee will thus be tasked with considering the specific guidelines for forming unbiased, highly skilled, well-respected commissions. These commissions are distinct from the traditional legal processes of investigation, prosecution, and conviction; they are unable to directly punish perpetrators, and typically can only go so far as to recommend institutional reforms to stop the abuse from being repeated. However, it would be patently false to argue that truth commissions are toothless. Indeed, their function lends them a unique role in the transitional justice process. By focusing on documenting patterns of rights violations over time, truth commissions can look at the "big picture" while prosecutors must focus on specific offenders. This empowers researchers to focus on underlying cultural and political factors that may have played into crimes, as well as "the internal structure of abusive forces, such as death squads or the intelligence branch of the

armed forces." Commissions are also expected to communicate the results of their findings with the public, thus potentially allowing them to have a larger impact than even court cases.

#### **Past Actions**

There have been over twenty truth commissions established around the world, and while their names may vary – some countries use the term Commissions of Inquiry, others Historical Clarification Commission – their underlying purpose remains the same. Truth commissions are usually short-term bodies that are dissolved after their research has been published, although some become permanent fixtures in their nations. Furthermore, they are "officially sanctioned by the government," giving them access to government records and other avenues of research that outside bodies may find out of reach. However, there is also much variance in truth commissions' mandates and function. Some examine crimes committed by both sides in a conflict, as in South Africa and Chile, while others focus on a specific type of crime, such as in Argentina, where investigators published the report Nunca Más, a profile of forced disappearances. The effectiveness of truth commissions also varies and can have a profound effect on their eventual impact. Those granted the resources and access needed to conduct a thorough investigation can produce reports that enter the public conscience and are a source of validation and dignity for victims. Without adequate support, however, truth commissions falter.

## The Process of Truth-Seeking

Truth commissions are usually created by either an executive decree or legislation. Decrees are more controversial and often have less power than formal legislation, but they can also be passed much more quickly. Different countries have thus chosen different approaches. Most Latin American countries have established commissions by executive decree, whereas African nations have mainly utilized legislation.

Investigators focused on truth-seeking should focus on identifying who the abusers were, what underlying political, cultural, and social factors caused the abuse, what the abuses were, and what eventually happened to individual victims. The International Convention for the Protection of all Persons from Enforced Disappearances codifies the "right of relatives of the missing or disappeared to learn the fate and whereabouts of their loved ones" as well as the right to the truth more generally. It is the task of truth commissions to follow through on safeguarding these rights. Moreover, they must then make recommendations based on their research as to how governments can implement cultural and policy reforms to ensure rights will never be abused in the future.

#### The Role of International Law

The majority of truth commissions make reference to specific codes of international human rights law, thus making it particularly important that delegates in this committee are well-versed in milestone human rights treaties such as the International Convention on Forced Disappearances, the Geneva

Conventions, and the Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Right to a Remedy and Remediation. In countries such as El Salvador, investigators have been able to use international law to argue that armed rebels holding "de facto government control over a territory... held obligations in accordance with international law."

At times, the best truth commissions will also investigate the role of the international community in participating – either actively or by turning a blind eye – to crimes. El Salvador's Truth Commission acknowledged the role of the US government in enabling rights abuses. In cases such as this, international treaties can play an essential role, enabling commissions to denounce the hypocrisy of signatories and dictating potential steps a complicit nation should undertake in recompense.

### **Prosecutions**

Prosecuting perpetrators is, at a cursory glance, the most straightforward option for implementing transitional justice, yet it can also be one of the most challenging. Indeed, the Office for the High Commissioner for Human Rights notes that, "the number of violations reaching the threshold of crimes under international law is so high that even a properly functioning justice system working at full capacity would not be able to handle such a large number of cases." The logistics of effectively collectively evidence on mass executions and regimes of torture is daunting, and it can be impossible to prosecute every person responsible for the brutality.

In part due to these barriers, one must consider the true purpose of prosecutions in these cases. After all, even vengeance can feel insufficient. There can be no fair exchange of an eye for an eye when millions of eyes have borne witness to tragedy, when millions of eyes have been shut forever, and a perpetrator has but two. The crimes that lead to transitional justice often inspire indescribable rage and pain. Sating the need for punishment is thus perhaps an impossible challenge. While many perceive the criminal justice system as a means by which to exact revenge on criminals, prosecutions in the context of transitional justice are perhaps an inappropriate place to think of revenge. This in turn calls into question the ongoing debate over the proper punishment for perpetrators. Can a country heal from a legacy of human rights abuses by executing those responsible, or does this set a precedent for the continuation of state sanctioned violence?

## Role of the International Community

The international community often tries to play a role in prosecutions, and courts such as the International Criminal Court (ICC) have been utilized in the past and have jurisdiction over many of the crimes that lead to the need for transitional justice, such as genocide, crimes against humanity, and war crimes. However, many argue that it is important to incorporate the nation in question as well. They propose a "hybrid prosecution mechanism... made up of international and national personnel." The rationale behind this body is that in many cases, a nation lacks the appropriate legal infrastructure to handle such high profile, complex prosecutions. Using a hybrid form of prosecution incorporates

the country as stakeholders in the process, while taking advantage of better-established international courts of justice. Building such a partnership is easier said than done, however. Delegates will need to carefully consider how prosecutorial and defense powers are distributed, as well as a way to incentivize nations into cooperating with international justice systems.

## **Conflicting Motivations**

Delegates will need to mediate between three main parties in the wake of abusive regimes, each wanting very different things. The perpetrators unsurprisingly want to avoid any responsibility for their actions. The victims, meanwhile, want justice, which often means convicting perpetrators. And finally, the newly formed government primarily wants to survive and restore stability – which often conflicts with prosecutions and punishment. Delegates thus need to weigh- up these competing interests. They must consider what is the ethical decision to make, but must also understand the complex circumstances faced by post conflict nations, which may prohibit them from following the most ethical course of action.

The answer to the above question seems all too easy. Our gut instinct is to prosecute and imprison those responsible. And while this may appear to be the ethical decision, it is not necessarily the option chosen by many transitional governments – and for good reason. In many cases, the perpetrators are members of a military junta. Even after being overthrown, the military retains much of its power, and by attempting to prosecute its members, "the government may run the risk of provoking a violent military reaction and hence putting the fragile democracy in potential danger." While it may be infuriating to let the military evade justice for their crimes, the cost of prosecuting them may be too high.

## **Implementation**

In order to organize an effective prosecution, several basic criteria must be met. Lawyers must be well versed in the specific type of law being practiced, which may differ greatly than traditional criminal law. The party organizing the trial must be able to process "large amounts of complicated evidence... [and] handle a complicated trial." While these requirements may seem obvious, in practice, many countries lack the properly trained lawyers and infrastructure to handle such a large case. This is why "hybrid" courts have become so popular as an alternative. These courts are by definition temporary and have staffers from both domestic and international origins. Most interestingly, and perhaps most challengingly, they must fuse national and international law. Delegates should consider how to reconcile these different forms of law when they come into conflict.

#### International Criminal Court

The International Criminal Court was established by the Rome Statute in 2002 and has jurisdiction in four types of war crimes, "grave breaches of the Geneva Conventions; other serious violations of the laws and customs applicable in international armed conflict; serious violations of Article 3 common to

the four Geneva Conventions; and other serious violations of the laws and customs applicable in armed conflicts not of an international character." The Geneva Conventions are four treaties on the treatment of persons during times of war. In the context of transitional justice, the most relevant document to examine is the fourth Convention, which establishes the rights of civilians to humane treatment. Common Article 3, meanwhile, deals with circumstances in which a conflict is domestic in scope, such as a civil war, although other forms of rebellion are not applicable. Its jurisdiction is also limited to the 123 member states that have ratified the Rome Statute or to referrals from the Security Council. However, in general, the ICC can be understood as having the jurisdiction to handle cases dealing with genocide, mass forced disappearances, torture, and rape, and other similar human rights abuses.

The ICC is different from hybrid tribunals because it is a purely international body. As a fledgling court, it has begun establishing a strong reputation for itself as a "court of last resort, intervening only when national authorities cannot or will not prosecute." Its focus thus far has heavily skewed towards African nations, attracting some criticism. It convicted Democratic Republic of Congo militia leader Thomas Lubanga for war crimes and sentenced him to fourteen years in prison. However, it struggles from a lack of resources; it has no police force and relies on nations to arrest suspects and transfer them to the court's location in The Hague. Its funding primarily comes from key member states, such as Japan, Germany, France, and the United Kingdom. The United States, Egypt, Iran, Israel, and Russia have signed the treaty but have not ratified it, while other high-profile nations such as India and China have not even signed it.

## Case Study - The Syrian Civil War

Syria's story is just beginning, and this committee's objective is in part to help shape its narrative. The Syrian Civil War is changing day by day. By the time this committee meets, the information is this background guide will be woefully out of date. The war could well be, at least officially, over by then. Thus, this study will instead explore the origins of the conflict, as well as proposals from leading experts on transitional justice as to how it might be applied in Syria for future years.

## History of the Conflict

The history of political authoritarianism and state- sanctioned violence in Syria extends for decades. In 1963, a state of emergency was declared, granting the new Baathist government the power to rule under martial law. The state of emergency has remained in place ever since. In 1970, Bashar al-Assad's father, Hafez alAssad, rose to power in a coup, and swiftly set about consolidating power by developing "a vast security apparatus capable of operating independently of the national army and police." Protests against his rule triggered a series of violent clashes and a network of clandestine prisons to torture and indefinitely hold dissidents. In one particularly grisly massacre, members of the Muslim Brotherhood party were targeted after several members of Assad's party, the Baathists, were assassinated. His younger brother, Rifaat, spearheaded a mixture of bombings and raids that may have

killed up to 40,000 people in retaliation. To this day, thousands of those "disappeared" under the elder Assad have never been found.

Bashar al-Assad took over from his father in 2000, following in his father's footsteps by quelling protests with violence and allowing "corruption, rising poverty and a growing sense of economic injustice ... to alienate large segments of the population." As Assad's loyalists grew wealthier and wealthier, the general population watched with mounting fury. Government corruption coupled with the worst drought in the nation's history extending from 2006 to 2010, impoverished hundreds of thousands and drove rural farmers into the cities, heightening political tensions. Eventually, these conditions would culminate in the start of widespread protests during the Arab Spring, a wave of protests that swept across many Arab nations in 2011.

The very start of the current civil war can be traced to 18 February 2011 in the capital city, Damascus, when a small crowd of Syrians gathered to protest the police, who had beaten a young man. Shortly afterwards, several dozen teenagers in Deraa were arrested for writing anti- Assad graffiti. Protests against the regime swelled in these two cities, spreading to a national scale by 25 March. The army retaliated viciously, killing hundreds of protesters in Deraa on 11 April 2011. In the ensuing days, the army continued to brutally attack protesters, triggering defections by soldiers who could not bring themselves to fire upon defenseless civilians. On 29 July, many of these defectors announced the formation of the Free Syrian Army (FSA) to protect civilians from their own military. By November, the conflict had begun to take the shape of a full-on war, with daily conflicts between the army and the FSA. The Syrian army began to deliberately target civilians, especially Sunnis, in their assaults, while the FSA took control of several towns and cities.

Assad has consistently attempted to discredit his opponents by denouncing them as "Sunni Islamic extremists in the mold of al-Qaeda." His efforts to do so have been made infinitely easier by the entry of the Islamic State in Iraq and Syria (ISIS), a Sunni splinter group from al-Qaeda that has gained international condemnation for their brutal rule over areas of Syria and Iraq, along with recent terror attacks on Western cities. ISIS seeks to destroy Assad's rule and establish a caliphate, or religious state governed by sharia law. ISIS is also fighting moderate anti-Assad groups including the FSA. Assad has cleverly avoided directly fighting ISIS for the most part, allowing them to attack his moderate rivals, thus presenting the Syrian people and international community with a clear choice: him, or a terrorist group known for public beheadings. As ISIS continues to suffer defeats and international attention has focused on the group's atrocities, the odds of the FSA winning the war shrink, and the odds of Assad clinging to power once the dust settles grow.

#### What Now?

No side in the civil war is blameless. Independent researchers with the United Nations have found evidence of war crimes committed by all groups, ranging from murder to torture to rape. Assad's forces have engaged in chemical warfare, firing sarin gas at rebel-held Damascus neighborhoods, an action

that President Obama had previously said was the "red line" that if crossed, would result in American military intervention. Yet Obama recanted his threat shortly after the reported attack, and Western powers continued to avoid engaging directly in the conflict. There are also reports of ISIS using sulfur mustard, another chemical weapon. Documenting these rights violations and prosecuting perpetrators will be a massive undertaking, but the main obstacle will be simply convincing the victors to hold themselves accountable.

Over 4.5 million Syrians have been scattered across Europe during the war, while 6.5 million remain internally displaced inside the country's borders. Providing any sort of reparations to refugees, assuming the victors can even be persuaded to offer reparations, will prove incredibly difficult given their dispersal across an entire continent. Resettling these refugees, and easing their transition into new lives in foreign countries, is a burden likely to fall onto European nations. Expecting the Syrian government to assist them is optimistic to the point of insanity, given both the enormous cost of war and the likelihood of an Assad victory. It is impossible to imagine Assad apologizing, let alone offering financial restitution, to the victims of the civil war. Delegates must then consider the extent of transitional justice. If those responsible for violence are unwilling to make amends, are others responsible for doing so?

Finally, bringing ISIS to justice will be a Herculean undertaking. While all the signs point towards the military defeat of ISIS in coming months, the scars left by the jihadist group will take decades to heal. Their usage of extortion, torture, rape, and murder is widespread and well documented. Civilians will both need assistance in the form of new infrastructure, psychological and medical treatment, and humanitarian aid, and some semblance of justice. It is unlikely that any prominent leaders of the group will go to trial for their crimes; death on the battlefield, or a life on the run, sheltered in sympathetic communities, is much more probable. While prosecutions are unlikely, truth-seeking remains a viable option and may allow victims the chance to at least share their stories. Indeed, providing some form of transitional justice for victims of ISIS will likely be easier than for victims of Assad. If Assad triumphs, he may be persuaded to provide aid to survivors of ISIS as a way to win back some international legitimacy and provide a contrast with the universally hated group.

# **Committee Objectives**

Given that this committee is establishing global guidelines for transitional justice, **only one draft resolution can be passed and it must have significant support amongst the committee for it to go to a vote.** The product you will be expected to create in this committee differs from a standard draft resolution. It should be formatted as a set of guidelines that (hopefully) will have won the approval of your fellow delegates in the Legal Committee and thus in an ideal world would be adhered to by a myriad of nations. Your set of guidelines needs to be broad enough to encompass the many different cases in which transitional justice is applicable. There is no easy formula for transitional justice. Guidelines therefore must be adaptable to different circumstances, giving particular regard to cases in

which governments are reluctant to acknowledge past human rights violations and need additional incentive to implement transitional justice policies.

Given that this committee focuses in part on the Syrian Civil War, guidelines should be easily applicable to this case study. Such a task is no doubt challenging, and delegates may find it helpful to organize their draft resolutions with different sections for each of the main three dimensions of transitional justice described in this guide: reparations, truth-seeking, and prosecutions. Additional areas that may merit specific language include the protection of at- risk demographics including ethnic minorities, women, and children, and recommendations on granting amnesties – if they should be granted at all.

As this topic is at the intersection of law, policy, and ethics, incorporating some of its more abstract concepts, such as the discussion on the ethical dimensions of transitional justice, may appear to be a daunting challenge. You are not expected to have a specific part of your draft resolution addressing ethics; putting standalone academic, philosophical concepts into an UN resolution makes little sense. Rather, the language in your set of guidelines should show that you have at least considered the underlying ethics behind your decision-making. Many of your recommendations will undoubtedly be controversial from an ethical standpoint. It is your job to understand that policies, especially in a case such as this one, are reflections of values and ethics, and therefore that these values and ethics need to be justified. This justification can be included in the substantive text of your guidelines or in preambulatory clauses, and will thus make the role of preambulatory clauses more important than in most committees. These clauses should explain specifically why you are justified in recommending certain actions, rather than broadly "condemning acts of genocide" and implying that your solution is inherently the ethical one.

### **Bloc Positions**

Forming blocs with common ground will challenge delegates, as many countries may find that they agree on one pillar of transitional justice and clash on the other two. Delegates may find it easier to single out one topic to advocate for, merging with other delegates that are experts on another pillar; however, given the contentious nature of many policy proposals, this will still require careful efforts at compromise. Potential ideological divisions and potential blocs are described below. However, delegates should bear in mind that their particular country may deviate from common consensus.

### 1. Developed Countries / Developing Countries

Developed countries, especially the United States, Canada and Europe, are more likely to demand tribunals and truth-seeking, as such measures are often associated with crimes committed in other countries and thus pose little burden. Developing countries will be more split, as some will desire tribunals as a way to hold perpetrators accountable, while others will worry about the toll this will take on legal infrastructure and national unity. Developed

countries may be willing to endorse higher financial reparations than developing nations given their larger budgets. However, given that these countries might also be expected to pay the expenses of transitional justice in other nations, through the usage of tribunals and the distribution of reparations, they might also be reluctant to make large monetary commitments. Additionally, many developed countries have been asked by citizens to pay reparations in the past – and refused to do so. The United States, for instance, has consistently refused to make reparations to descendants of slaves. Given this history, developed countries may actually be more hesitant to endorse transitional justice than developing ones, as doing so will require them to pay a hefty bill that has accrued through the centuries.

#### 2. Latin America

Latin American countries have a lengthy and recent history of engaging in transitional justice. As such, a bloc of these nations could position themselves as the leading experts on the topic, and steer debate towards solutions employed by their governments. However, given the controversial strategies employed by these nations, including amnesties for perpetrators, they may also be some of the more conservative voices in the committee.

#### 3. The Middle East

Middle Eastern and North African countries still handling the results of the 2011 Arab Spring, such as Tunisia, Egypt, and Libya,134 have perhaps the most pressing need for transitional justice, and thus may rally together to promote a strategy that appeals to their populations while avoiding costly and logistically challenging measures. Other neighboring countries may wish to avoid drastic recommendations, given the region's volatile political climate. These countries will also need to grapple with the question of Israel. Given their support of Palestine, they may want harsher transitional justice recommendations in the hopes that Israel one day must provide reparations and other aid to the Palestinian people. Whether this desire will circumvent their interests, however, remains to be seen.

#### 4. East Asia

Most East Asian countries will similarly be reluctant to recommend significant reforms. Countries like China and Myanmar have track records of abusing and imprisoning citizens, and are unlikely to endorse proposals that would hold their governments accountable. They would be much more likely to support guidelines that require other nations to provide reparations for past crimes committed within their borders. The Nanking Massacre, when Japanese soldiers slaughtered hundreds of thousands of Chinese - and raped between 20,000-80,000 women - has affected relations between China and Japan to this day. China would welcome the chance to demand that Japan provide reparations, and many other countries may also seek to utilize transitional justice guidelines to insist that their neighbors are held responsible for war crimes and crimes against humanity

## **Guiding Questions**

- 1. How should transitional justice be implemented in an ethical and fair way on the world stage?
- 2. How can we ensure that victims are given reparations when there is a violation of human rights/humanitarian law?
- 3. How should perpetrators of human rights abuses be punished by the justice system?
- 4. What is the role of the international community in ensuring that human rights abuses do not take place?
- 5. How can the UN ensure that people are held accountable for human rights abuses?
- 6. What is your country's involvement in the Syrian Civil War? If your country isn't involved, what is your country's opinion on the war?
- 7. Are there any steps that the UN can take to attempt to end the Syrian Civil War?

## **Topic 2: Regulating Multinational Corporations**

### Introduction

MNCs with great social and political capital have operated with little accountability since they originated. Currently, international law does not have regulations for corporations or mechanisms to ensure compliance. With MNCs based in many countries and outsourcing to many more, jurisdiction is difficult to establish for these corporations. Despite being international bodies, MNCs frequently fall under national labor codes. Because there is no consistency across national laws, they also fail to regulate MNCs. As a result, MNCs can evade both national and international regulations. Consequently, corporations carry out practices that negatively affect climate change and exploit workers. Despite committing countless crimes that are economic and social in nature, few international proceedings have held these corporations liable. Although corporations are often seen as "legal persons" in the eye of the law through what is known as corporate personhood, they are not held to the same standards as individuals when it comes to illegal actions.

While certain countries are starting to take strides toward regulating the actions of their MNCs, the international stance remains unclear. This allows the damage caused by such corporations to grow exponentially and worsen as time goes on. Although MNCs have revolutionized the global community and play an integral role in our world, international law must be restructured.

This topic explores the complex concerns that arise when considering the regulation of MNCs. Questions of national vs. international interests, failures of the past, and substantive changes for the future must be carefully considered. Whether through successful legislation from national parties, or the creation of brand new legal frameworks, resolving this issue will require a strong knowledge of the history of corporations, national stake in such an issue, and other considerations. Throughout this discussion, delegates will navigate questions of corporate personhood, current environmental measures, and the international courts' effectiveness on this topic. Ultimately, delegates should work towards creating substantive recommendations and advisory notices that relevant UN bodies and committees can then act upon.

## History and Description of the Issue

## The Rise of and Exploitative Nature of MNCs

The origin of MNCs can be traced back to the late sixteenth century, with the creation of European trading companies, particularly English and Dutch ones. Among the most prominent of these was the Dutch East India Company, founded in 1602 and entrusted with exploiting resources from the colonies. These companies became one of the pillars of capitalist development and an essential vehicle for European imperialism in the world.

The colonial history behind MNCs are the foundation for their exploitative practices today. With semi-governmental powers and complete support from the monarch, the DEIC could wield its power strategically. Such freedom allowed for the easy exploitation of employees and the general public while Dutch officials accumulated wealth. Any time the DEIC faced shortages of supply, it "dramatically lowered salaries for all of the already underpaid agents, regardless of rank". (Backer) A supply shortage occurs when the demand for a product exceeds the supply of that product. Further costs to produce more products are taken from employee wages and may lead to inadequate compensation. As such, slave labor was crucial in allowing the MNC to accumulate wealth without losing profit. It is widely accepted that The Dutch East India Company's peak worth reached an amount equivalent to USD 7.9 trillion today through such business practices. Through the exploitation of workers in other countries, the ability to cut wages without explanation, and semi-governmental power, the DEIC set the stage for the future behaviors of multinational corporations.

Modern MNCs parallel the business practices of the past while also facing barriers of the present. Wealth disparity continues to increase as MNCs pay less than livable wages and avoid paying taxes. The combined wealth of the eight richest men in the world is the same as the combined wealth of the poorest half of the world. Despite this large inequality, few measures have been taken to correct it. All eight of these men own and lead the current largest MNCs in the world, which includes names such as Warren Buffet (Berkshire Hathaway), Jeff Bezos (Amazon), Mark Zuckerberg (Facebook), and Michael

Bloomberg (Bloomberg L.P.). By moving production to developing countries, MNCs can "own a majority stake in factories with sweatshop conditions"! (Britannica) without worrying about their corporate responsibility. In 2014, the International Labor Organization estimated that USD 150 billion is generated annually through forced labor. Just as the Dutch East India Company exploited workers and used forced labor for production, current MNCs use similar business practices.

While the DEIC paved the way for principal business concepts, it also served as a model of corruption for future MNCs to follow. Exploitative practices continue to surround MNCs, but they are no longer the sole areas to redress. In the current global community, MNCs have often ignored their economic responsibility. Several MNCs find ways to evade and lessen their tax payments by taking advantage of ambiguous tax laws. Often, federal governments prioritize corporate interests over the general public. In 2017, corporate tax was lowered from 35 percent to 21 percent in the United States of America, which hurt low and middle-income households. Although MNCs are integral to the trade of goods and services, there is a large gap in who benefits from it economically. Whether it is through the exploitation of workers or ways of evading economic responsibility, modern MNCs require reform, and current legislation must be examined to address such problems.

## The Scope of International Law

Today, scholars widely accept that MNCs are an incredibly "important actor in contemporary international relations." (GL et al.) Widely influential legal professionals, including Professor Seymour Rubin of the American Society of International Law, echo these beliefs. By analyzing economic patterns, historical examples, and the relationships between MNCs and governments, academics and leading professors find consensus on this understanding. While the DEIC outwardly broadcasted its semi-governmental powers, current MNCs hide their similar levels of authority and control. Despite playing a large role in international relations, no international legal authority governs MNCs. Corporations are currently seen as "incorporated under the laws of a particular country, undertaking business activities beyond the borders of that particular country." This means there are no international laws in place to restrict MNCs. This system does not allow countries to hold their corporations accountable for their actions overseas. While federal governments can supervise corporate behavior in their own country, it becomes increasingly difficult in other countries. Questions also arise over which labor codes should be enforced. If an MNC based out of the United States or Sweden has factories in Bangladesh, which country's employment standards must be met? Similarly, should wages be determined based on the country of work or the home of the MNC? Such questions have no real answer in international law. As a result, MNCs can pay low wages and avoid the restrictive labor codes of their countries. By outsourcing work to developing countries, MNCs reduce costs for information technology (IT) and similar services by up to 60 percent. Although outsourcing may benefit the economies of underdeveloped countries, further regulations would create a universal standard for MNCs and protect workers' rights.

Modern history has allowed MNCs to grow in global reach, influence, and economic strength. In 2002, ExxonMobil was worth around USD 63 billion—comparable to the GDP of Chile and Pakistan. The benefits of outsourcing for MNCs far exceed the benefits to these countries' economies. MNCs often allow interference from their home countries in corporate affairs. This practice allows them to maintain strong relations with their home countries if they experience difficulties in their outsourcing countries. Corporations still operate as separate bodies and evade blame from their home countries when it is beneficial. The current system allows MNCs to claim national status when it may assist them and reject it when the international status is more appealing. It is therefore evident that "until a coherent body of laws is created by [countries], [MNCs] will continue to operate in a confusing spine of legal conflict." (Oyebode).

While many have suggested international regulatory agencies and other forms of restricting MNCs, the global community hasn't agreed on any single framework. Creating laws to regulate MNCs will help lessen the currently ignored problems. Without legal powers over MNCs, exploitation and economic shortcuts will continue. The International Labor Organization (ILO) ensures that human rights are protected. However, without legal frameworks to control MNCs, human rights protections have no standing over corporations. Similarly, while the UN Tax Committee focuses on forming proper tax systems, MNCs easily avoid taxes through lobbying and, at times, corruption. The few international regulations that have been enacted have been unable to cover the full reach of these companies. Past efforts (including the ILO Tripartite Declaration of Principles Concerning Multilateral Enterprises and Social Policy) could not restrict MNCs. In 1977, the ILO first approved the Tripartite Declaration of Principles Concerning Multilateral Enterprises and Social Policy (also known as the MNE Declaration). This Declaration was amended on several occasions to account for the rapidly changing status of MNCs. However, its main goal of encouraging "the positive contribution which [transnational] enterprises can make to economic and social progress and the realization of decent work for all" never changed (Diller). Despite having a clear goal, the MNE Declaration did not require a precise definition for MNCs. Similarly, the Declaration had no framework to decide what qualifies as child labor, unlivable wages, equal opportunity, and many other important terms. As such, the Declaration failed to create a strong framework to restrict MNCs from exploiting their workers. Additionally, the MNE Declaration proposed no way to make sure that MNCs would comply with its goals.

The most important aspects missing from past efforts—including the MNE Declaration—are "mandatory and verifiable reporting systems, mechanisms for monitoring corporate activity and compliance, and enforcement mechanisms which are effective beyond national boundaries." (de Jonge) Reporting systems must be widely implemented and required for MNCs. Similarly, they must be verifiable to ensure accountability. Such systems would allow MNC activity, wages, and working conditions to be verified. Implementing accountability systems may combat MNCs' exploitative practices. Mechanisms for monitoring corporate activity would allow a greater look into the dealings of corporate officials. These measures may assist in monitoring MNCs' economic operations and tax-related behaviors. Finally, enforcement mechanisms will allow the accountability system to be

widely accepted. Without forms of enforcement, MNCs will continue to exploit workers and avoid their corporate responsibilities. These proposed measures are just the first steps for creating a legal framework to regulate MNCs. Further measures can be taken to ensure corporate responsibility. Loopholes in past regulations have allowed MNCs to continue their harmful practices without facing any consequences. Because current international laws are loosely defined, they are unsuccessful in regulating MNCs. As such, it is important to clearly define MNCs in future legislation.

## Corporate Personhood

The legal theory of corporate personhood gives corporations the same standing as a person. Implementation of corporate personhood allows corporations several rights and responsibilities. Most notable are the rights to own property, sue and be sued, be punished for illegal activity, and be subject to taxation. (Millon) By treating corporations as legal persons, bodies of law also hold them accountable for the legal responsibilities of a human being. This means that the legal responsibilities of corporations fall on the company itself rather than its employees. Employees cannot be held liable for civil and criminal acts committed by their corporation. The actions of corporations are not considered the faults of the individuals making business decisions. Rather, only the corporation is to be blamed.

While the concept of corporate personhood did not formally exist until the creation of the DEIC, the basic ideology behind it likely emerged in India as early as 800 BC. Since then, the ideology has developed into a widespread, almost universal identifier for MNCs. Landmark case law in many countries has allowed corporations to identify as legal persons. Distinguishing MNCs as legal entities allows certain forms of accountability. The ability to be sued or forced to pay taxes allows governments to regulate certain corporate behavior. Concerned individuals and impacted parties have the ability to raise concerns if MNCs violate the law of their nation, particularly in cases of employee abuse, money laundering, or tax evasion.

Regarding the national legal process, corporate personhood successfully protects the rights of corporations while still maintaining their legal responsibilities. Nonetheless, this cannot be said for international law. MNCs fall under the jurisdiction of international courts. The European Court of Human Rights (ECHR) grants MNCs protections under the European Convention on Human Rights. This means that corporations can be considered victims of human rights abuses. Like corporate personhood, this ruling treats corporations as legal persons. Nonetheless, the court does not extend legal responsibility to corporations when they have committed human rights abuses. The ECHR (and other international courts) grant corporations legal personhood for their rights but not for their responsibilities. This distinction means that MNCs are objects of international law but are not subjects of it. While they are protected under it, they are not held accountable under international law. International courts operate with a nation-centric model. Only a country can be held responsible for infringements of human rights laws caused by their MNCs.

### **Responsibility Evasion**

Analyzing international law demonstrates that there are few global regulations placed on MNCs. Without global tax systems or universal labor laws, MNCs avoid accountability. Over time, corporations have adapted to avoid even the little regulations their federal government imposes. Tax law and corporate working conditions are nationally determined. Nevertheless, many large corporations find ways to evade these responsibilities. The Institute on Taxation and Economic Policy (ITEP) found that at least 55 of The United States' largest corporations paid no federal taxes in the 2020 fiscal year. With the United States being home to the greatest number of MNCs worldwide, corporate laws need to be strict. However, many countries have tax breaks that allow the system to be abused. In the United States, The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA) lowered corporate tax from 35 percent to 21 percent. Additionally, corporations move money to subsidiaries in other countries. This method allows corporations to pay significantly less in income tax or hold their money for long periods.

Illegal actions like these tax havens are incredibly difficult for government agencies to notice. As a result, corporations avoid their economic responsibility without any penalties. MNCs can save billions of dollars through this method without raising wages for employees or providing them with more benefits. By avoiding their economic responsibilities, MNCs force the general public to compensate for them. Federal taxes rise to adjust for the income taxes that MNCs fail to pay. In 2020, Nike did not pay any federal income tax through such practices. Despite earning almost USD 2.9 billion, Nike received a USD 109 million tax return. Tax benefits intended to help struggling companies during the COVID-19 pandemic have been used by MNCs to continue accumulating wealth. The current lack of structures to restrict MNCs allows continued exploitation of the tax system. This exploitation harms the general public, who bear the burden of MNCs.

Many measures have been taken by countries and intergovernmental organizations to combat this issue. Over time, however, corporations have worked around these restrictions. The European Coalition for Corporate Justice has proposed methods to "require [European Union] companies with more than 500 employees and turnover of EU 150 million to prevent human rights and environmental abuses along their full supply chains, by carrying out so-called 'due diligence.'" (Brussels) This is one of the first concrete proposals of this nature by an intergovernmental body. However, this approach highlights the problem with attempts to restrict MNCs. The draft would allow companies to protect their practices by forcing third parties to verify their actions. This would mean that the legal discipline would be given to third parties instead of the MNCs responsible for illegal acts. Current drafts do not force MNCs to take responsibility for their actions. Although this draft has potential, it does not solve many major problems.

Through MNCs being treated as objects instead of subjects and a lack of enforceable accountability systems, MNCs thrive under international law. Imbalances in the system—especially on the international level— make it very difficult to hold them accountable. MNCs have access to unlimited funds and incredible attorneys, thus making legal conflicts an uphill battle for others.

### **Bloc Positions**

### 1. High CIP (Competitive Industry Performance) with High Industry Regulations

Countries with high CIP scores and high industry regulations may be seen as a model for addressing this issue. High industry restrictions suggest an effort toward MNC regulation. These scores are only possible if a country's federal government has implemented strong regulations on the actions taken by its institutions. Additionally, high CIP scores offer valuable insight into the success of an industry. Countries with higher CIP scores are often indicative of a flourishing industry. Economic growth continues each year, and federal regulations do not particularly hinder industries. Despite the current exploitative practices of MNCs, it is undeniable that they play a large role in the global community. As a result, countries must ensure that regulations are not hindering economic growth.

Considerations of labor laws and environmental policy are implemented into CIP scores. Thus, the economic growth of MNCs is relevant to federal regulations. Countries in this category are able to regulate labor issues and environmental impact without harming their industries. It would be ideal for all countries to strive for these distinctions. At this time, Mexico is one country that falls in this category. With a relatively high CIP (ranked 20 out of 152 in 2018), Mexico consistently exhibits economic growth in its industries. Additionally, Mexico has high governmental regulation of industry activity. Canada falls into this bloc as well. With relatively high governmental regulations and a CIP of 19/152, it operates similarly to Mexico. This combination may be one that other countries strive for. The international policy of these countries may be optimistic about the international regulations of MNCs. Such countries may also act as leaders in drafting potential legislation for this topic. Successful federal law from these countries can act as a potential basis for international legal doctrines.

#### 2. High CIP with Low Industry Regulations

Countries that fall into this category may be particularly inflexible in their approach to this topic. These countries additionally offer a haven for MNCs at this time. By setting headquarters in countries with CIP and low regulation, MNCs benefit greatly. MNCs receive the benefits of a growing economy without concern over federal regulations. By offering great opportunities for economic growth, countries in this bloc have the means for strong institutions. Conversely, a lack of regulations allows MNCs to operate without any forms of accountability. This bloc is likely to host a majority of the countries with many MNC headquarters. The opportunity these countries provide for MNCs is unmatched. Subsequently, countries in this bloc may be the largest proponents of this issue. Since problematic MNCs are often in these countries, this bloc may have the most difficult transition in implementing regulations. Countries such as Germany and the United States of America enjoy economic growth without the hindrance of MNC regulation. By allowing MNCs to perform unchecked, these countries have financially benefited greatly. Conversely, they exhibit a disproportionately high level of exploitation

and environmental damage. Due to the political sway MNCs often have on legislation, many of these countries refuse to implement any regulations at this time.

#### 3. Low CIP with Low Industry Regulations

Countries in this bloc may have a significantly different approach to this issue. Having a low CIP, these countries have lacked industrialization. In the scope of this issue, these countries likely do not have many MNCs based in them. On the other hand, this bloc may represent many countries where outsourcing occurs for MNCs. Without industry progression, there is little need for regulation. While the CIP scores of these countries may suggest a weak economy, these delegations will likely focus on economic growth. To grow past the need for MNC factories and outsourcing, these countries must boost their own economy. Nonetheless, it is important to stimulate growth without sacrificing regulations. Countries in this bloc will subsequently have to balance both indices.

Unlike countries with high CIPs, this bloc may approach the issue by proposing new methods of economic growth. These methods will have to be sustainable and confined to any proposed regulations. Although there is currently an absence of regulations, these blocs will adopt a multifaceted approach. Armenia ranked 103/152 for CIP in 2018.82 The federal government has also imposed very few regulations on industry management.83 Similarly, Moldova falls into this bloc with few restrictions and a rank of 111/152 for CIP.84 Due to this situation, Armenia may first prioritize economic growth before desiring industry regulations. The nature of countries in this bloc may raise issues on the necessity of regulations. Countries with High CIP have long been the largest cause of harm under MNCs. As a result, countries in this bloc may assert that they are being forced to create federal regulations due to the actions of other countries. Through these considerations of international policy, this bloc could resist universal standards for all countries to follow.

# **Committee Objectives**

An important step in international law is the acknowledgment of current gaps, such as the regulation of MNCs. It may be difficult to navigate federal and international interests along with the application of new international law. Without current means to enforce or wholly apply international law to corporations, the Legal committee is the body responsible for discussing new legal actions. Questions of MNC autonomy, federal restrictions, and corporate personhood leave much to be established while creating regulations for MNCs. Although the Legal Committee offers a strong backdrop for negotiating such discussions, it lacks the decision-making power to draft legislation, as the Legal Committee is a legal advisory forum. The mandates of committees such as UNIDO, UNCTAD, and international courts of human rights may be able to legislate the measures set forth by the Legal Committee. As the leading legislative body of the United Nations, the Legal Committee must take the first step toward reform. The unique role of the Legal Committee places it as the precedential body to motivate legal action on an international level. It is, therefore, the responsibility of the Sixth General Assembly to draft substantive proposals to assist in reevaluating MNCs. Delegates will be faced with the challenge and opportunity to

set forth the first, most landmark steps toward the international regulation of multinational corporations.

## **Guiding Questions**

- 1. What legal precedent present does your country have on multinational corporations or national corporations within the country to regulate them?
- 2. What multinational corporations are active players in your country's economy? How does it affect the national economy?
- 3. What economic benefit do multinational corporations provide to your country? Or, what economic drawbacks do multinational corporations have in your country?
- 4. What specific exports and imports are most prevalent in your country? How do these affect your country's actions in regulating these multinational corporations?
- 5. What labor codes and tax laws apply to and are properly upheld in your country? How effectively are corporations held accountable for their employees' wages and their economic responsibilities?
- 6. What influences do multinational corporations have on your country? Are there allegations or past examples of corruption related to multinational corporations? What effects have they caused in acquiring a country's industries?

## **Closing Remarks**

I hope that this background guide has proven to be informative and engaging, and that it provides some context into the exceptionally challenging and exciting topics we will be discussing. While this guide covers a wide variety of content, please bear in mind that it hardly scratches the surface of a topic that some academics have dedicated their entire careers to studying. I hope that as you continue your preparations for our committee and write your own position papers, that you bear in mind the unique dilemmas we will grapple with throughout TMUN. My primary hope for you this weekend is that you walk away with a deeper knowledge of our topic area, not with a gavel in hand. Delegates who are truly passionate about this topic and immerse themselves in understanding its details will benefit both in the committee room and outside of it.

#### Best,

Sarah Hu, Director of the Legal Committee, Toronto Model United Nations 2023.

## **Topic 1 Bibliography**

"Basic Principles and Guidelines on the Right to a Remedy and Reparation for Victims of Gross Violations of International Human Rights Law and Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law." OHCHR,

www.ohchr.org/en/instruments-mechanisms/instruments/basic-principles-and-guidelines-right-remedy-and-reparation.

brussels. "Dangerous Gaps Undermine EU Commission's New Legislation to Hold Corporations Accountable." *ECCJ*,

corporatejustice.org/news/dangerous-gaps-undermine-eu-commissions-new-legislation-on-s ustainable-supply-chains/.

de Jonge, Alice. "Transnational Corporations and International Law: Bringing TNCs out of the Accountability Vacuum." *Critical Perspectives on International Business*, vol. 7, no. 1, Feb. 2011, pp. 66–89, https://doi.org/10.1108/17422041111103840.

Diller, Janelle M. "ILO Tripartite Declaration of Principles Concerning Multinational Enterprises and Social Policy." *International Legal Materials*, vol. 41, no. 1, Jan. 2002, pp. 184–201, https://doi.org/10.1017/s0020782900009256.

Eisikovits, Nir. "Transitional Justice (Stanford Encyclopedia of Philosophy)." *Stanford.edu*, 2009, plato.stanford.edu/entries/justice-transitional/.

FOCUS: TRANSITIONAL JUSTICE. 2010,

www.ictj.org/sites/default/files/ICTJ-Global-Transitional-Justice-2009-English.pdf.

Grover, Leena. "Transitional Justice, International Law and the United Nations." *Nordic Journal of International Law*, vol. 88, no. 3, Aug. 2019, pp. 359–97,

https://doi.org/10.1163/15718107-08803002.

"Guidelines on the Role of Prosecutors." OHCHR,

www.ohchr.org/en/instruments-mechanisms/instruments/guidelines-role-prosecutors.

"HOW the UNIFORM CRIME VICTIMS REPARATIONS ACT WORKS | Office of Justice Programs."

Www.ojp.gov,

www.ojp.gov/ncjrs/virtual-library/abstracts/how-uniform-crime-victims-reparations-act-works . Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

"International Association of Prosecutors - UN Resolution: IAP." *Www.iap-Association.org*, www.iap-association.org/Resources-Documentation/IAP-Standards-(1)/UN-Resolution. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

Lawry-White, Merryl. "THE REPARATIVE EFFECT of TRUTH SEEKING in TRANSITIONAL

JUSTICE." *The International and Comparative Law Quarterly*, vol. 64, no. 1, 2015, pp. 141–77,

www.jstor.org/stable/43302006.

Millon, David. "The Ambiguous Significance of Corporate Personhood the Ambiguous Significance of Corporate Personhood Recommended Citation Recommended Citation." *Agora:*Online J. Legal Persp, vol. 39, 2001,

scholarly commons. law. wlu. edu/cgi/view content.cgi? article=1648 & context=wlu fac.

Nations, United. "About Us." *United Nations*, www.un.org/en/about-us/.

"OHCHR | about Transitional Justice and Human Rights." OHCHR,

www.ohchr.org/en/transitional-justice/about-transitional-justice-and-human-rights#:~:text=Tr ansitional%20justice%20is%20rooted%20in. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

"OHCHR | OHCHR: Transitional Justice and Human Rights." OHCHR,

www.ohchr.org/en/transitional-justice#:~:text=Transitional%20justice%20aims%20to%20provide. Accessed 14 Jan. 2023.

"OHCHR | Reparations." OHCHR,

www.ohchr.org/en/transitional-justice/reparations#:~:text=Victims%20have%20a%20right%2 0to. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

"OHCHR | Truth." OHCHR, www.ohchr.org/en/transitional-justice/truth. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

Oyebode, A. "International Regulation of the Multinational Corporation: A Look at Some

Recent Proposals." National Black Law Journal, 1977,

www.semanticscholar.org/paper/International-Regulation-of-the-Multinational-A-at-Oyebode /537d0c01f72fad14317a00828b2955af5795f436.

"Permanent Mission to the United Nations | Sixth Committee (Legal Committee)."

Enaun.cancilleria.gob.ar,

enaun.cancilleria.gob.ar/en/content/sixth-committee-legal-committee#:~:text=Sixth%20Committee%20(Legal%20Committee). Accessed 10 Jan. 2023.

"Prosecution & Defense Archives." United Nations and the Rule of Law,

www.un.org/ruleoflaw/blog/document-category/prosecution-defense/. Accessed 15 Jan.

2023.

Rashid, Norul Mohamed. "Guidelines on the Role of Prosecutors." *United Nations and the Rule of Law*, www.un.org/ruleoflaw/blog/document/guidelines-on-the-role-of-prosecutors/.

Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

"Read 'International Conflict Resolution after the Cold War' at NAP.edu."

Nap.nationalacademies.org, nap.nationalacademies.org/read/9897/chapter/10. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

"Reparation for Victims of Serious Violations of International Humanitarian Law: New Developments." *International Review of the Red Cross*,

international-review.icrc.org/articles/reparation-for-victims-of-serious-violations-of-ihl-new-d evelopments-919.

"Reparations | International Center for Transitional Justice." *Www.ictj.org*, www.ictj.org/reparations.

"Supreme Court of Canada Case in Depth: Nevsun Resources Ltd. V. Araya, 2020 SCC 5." *Gowling WLG*, 2020,

gowlingwlg.com/en/insights-resources/articles/2020/nevsun-resources-ltd-v-araya-2020-scc-5 /.

Sy, Geronimo L. "Rethinking the Five Pillars of the Criminal Justice System: Towards a New Model." *Philippine Journal of Public Administration*, vol. 49, no. 3-4, 2005, pp. 310–24, www.journals.upd.edu.ph/index.php/pjpa/article/view/1301.

"The Value of a Harm-Based, Victim Centered Approach to Reparative Justice." *Quid Justitiae*, 2020,

www.quidjustitiae.ca/en/blogue/value-harm-based-victim-centered-approach-reparative-justice.

Transitional Justice Mechanisms Lessons Learned from Truth and Reconciliation Commissions. www.afsc.org/sites/default/files/documents/Burundi-TRC-report-EN.pdf.

"Truth and Memory | International Center for Transitional Justice." *Www.ictj.org*, www.ictj.org/truth-and-memory.

"Truth-Seeking, Memory, and Memorials | ICTJ." *International Center for Transitional Justice*, 25 Feb. 2011, www.ictj.org/our-work/transitional-justice-issues/truth-and-memory.

United Nations. "International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia | United Nations
International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia." *Www.icty.org*, 2017, www.icty.org/.
"Validate User." *Academic.oup.com*, academic.oup.com/hrlr/article/21/4/874/6327498.

"Victims." Icc-Cpi.int, 2019, www.icc-cpi.int/about/victims.

Walker, Kathy, and Kirsten J. Fisher. "Transitional Justice for Indigenous Peoples Should Be a Key Federal Election Issue." *The Conversation*,

theconversation.com/transitional-justice-for-indigenous-peoples-should-be-a-key-federal-ele ction-issue-166452.

What Are Reparations?. THE NATIONAL COALITION of BLACKS for REPARATIONS in AMERICA (N'COBRA) DEFINES REPARATIONS AS.

www.sierraclub.org/sites/default/files/M4BL%20 Reparations%20 Fact%20 Sheet-compressed.p df.

Zaken, Ministerie van Algemene. "The International Criminal Court (ICC) - International Peace and Security - Government.nl." *Www.government.nl*, 30 Sept. 2014,

www.government.nl/topics/international-peace-and-security/international-legal-order/the-international-criminal-court-icc.

## **Topic 2 Bibliography**

"5 Ways Multinationals Can Have a Greater Impact on the SDGs." *World Economic Forum*, www.weforum.org/agenda/2021/09/5-ways-multinational-corporations-can-have-greater-impact-on-the-sdgs-sustainable-development-goals-mncs/.

"2000 OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises - OECD." Www.oecd.org,

www.oecd.org/corporate/mne/2000oecdguidelinesformultinationalenterprises.htm.

Affairs, UN. Department of Economic and Social. "Multinational Corporations in World Development." *United Nations Digital Library System*, 1973,

digitallibrary.un.org/record/1648044?ln=en.

Backer, Larry Catá. "Regulating Multinational Corporations: Trends, Challenges, and Opportunities." *The Brown Journal of World Affairs*, vol. 22, no. 1, 2015, pp. 153–73, www.jstor.org/stable/24591006.

Britannica. "Multinational Corporation | Business | Britannica." *Encyclopædia Britannica*, 2019, www.britannica.com/topic/multinational-corporation.

"Competitive Industrial Performance (CIP) Index Ranking, Colombia and Selected Countries, 1990-2015." *Www.oecd-Ilibrary.org*,

www.oecd-ilibrary.org/development/competitive-industrial-performance-cip-index-ranking-c olombia-and-selected-countries-1990-2015\_b1cb94d0-en. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

General Distribution OCDE/GD(97)133 REGULATION and INDUSTRIAL COMPETITIVENESS: A

PERSPECTIVE for REGULATORY REFORM by HELGARD WIENERT ORGANISATION for ECONOMIC

CO-OPERATION and DEVELOPMENT Paris 55375 Document Complet Disponible Sur OLIS Dans Son Format d'Origine Complete Document Available on OLIS in Its Original Format.

www.oecd.org/official documents/public display document pdf/?cote=OCDE/GD(97) 133&docLanguage=En.

GL, Visit us OECD Watch Sarphatistraat 30 1018, et al. "The OECD Guidelines." *OECD Watch*, www.oecdwatch.org/oecd-ncps/the-oecd-guidelines-for-mnes/.

"Guidelines for MNEs - Organisation for Economic Co-Operation and Development." *Oecd.org*, 2021, mneguidelines.oecd.org/.

"Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises - OECD." Www.oecd.org, www.oecd.org/els/emp/guidelinesformultinationalenterprises.htm.

"In the Competitive Industrial Performance Index - 2021 the Republic of Uzbekistan Rose to 94th Place." *Ministry of Economic Development and Poverty Reduction of the Republic of Uzbekistan*, mineconomy.uz/en/info/3924. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

Juan, Miguel, et al. *Cuadernos Constitucionales de La Cátedra Fadrique Furió Ceriol Nº 64/65*. biblioteca.corteidh.or.cr/tablas/r26745.pdf.

"Legal Practices for Multinational Companies." *Small Business - Chron.com*, smallbusiness.chron.com/legal-practices-multinational-companies-79489.html.

Liu, Zhenmin, and UN Under-Secretary-General for Economic and Social Affairs. "Record #3997977." *United Nations Digital Library System*, 18 July 2022,

digitallibrary.un.org/record/3997977?ln=en.

"MNE Guidelines - Organisation for Economic Co-Operation and Development." *Oecd.org*, 2011, mneguidelines.oecd.org/mneguidelines/.

"Multinational Corporations and Liability according to International Law – Writing Anthology." Central.edu, central.edu/writing-anthology/2019/05/31/multinational-corporations-and-liability-according -to-international-law/.

"Multinational Corporations, Global Markets, and the Constitution | Encyclopedia.com."

Www.encyclopedia.com,

www.encyclopedia.com/politics/encyclopedias-almanacs-transcripts-and-maps/multinational-corporations-global-markets-and-constitution.

"Multinational Corporations in International Law." Obo,

www.oxfordbibliographies.com/display/document/obo-9780199796953/obo-9780199796953-0 049.xml#:~:text=In%20traditional%20international%20law%2C%20multinational. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

"Nevsun Resources Ltd. V. Araya: What the Canadian Supreme Court Decision Means in Holding Canadian Companies Accountable for Human Rights Abuses Abroad." *Business & Human Rights Resource Centre*,

www.business-humanrights.org/en/latest-news/nevsun-resources-ltd-v-araya-what-the-canad ian-supreme-court-decision-means-in-holding-canadian-companies-accountable-for-human-rights-abuses-abroad/. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

OECD. OECD Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises 2011 EDITION. 2011,

www.oecd.org/daf/inv/mne/48004323.pdf.

www.ohchr.org/en/special-procedures/wg-business.

"OHCHR | Working Group on Business and Human Rights." OHCHR,

Organization, United Nations Industrial Development. "Benchmarking Industrial Performance at the Country Level: The UNIDO Competitive Industrial Performance Index."

Www.un-Ilibrary.org, 17 Aug. 2009,

www.un-ilibrary.org/content/books/9789211562934s015-c005.

"Our Participants | UN Global Compact." *Unglobalcompact.org*, 2015,

www.unglobalcompact.org/what-is-gc/participants.

Ruggie, John. Regulating Multinationals: The UN Guiding Principles, Civil Society, and International Legalization.

www.hks.harvard.edu/sites/default/files/centers/mrcbg/files/RPP\_2015\_04\_Ruggie.pdf.

Stiglitz, Joseph. "Regulating Multinational Corporations: Towards Principles of Cross-Border

Legal Frameworks in a Globalized World Balancing Rights with Responsibilities." American

University International Law Review, vol. 23,

digitalcommons.wcl.american.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1025&context=auilr.

UCLA National Black Law Journal Title International Regulation of the Multinational

Corporation: A Look at Some Recent Proposals.

escholarship.org/content/qt3nz79708/qt3nz79708.pdf?t=nrwo7z.

"UN Gives MNCs a Clean Chit." Www.downtoearth.org.in,

www.downtoearth.org.in/news/un-gives-mncs-a-clean-chit-30464. Accessed 15 Jan. 2023.

"UNIDO Statistics Data Portal." Stat.unido.org,

stat.unido.org/database/CIP%20-%20Competitive%20Industrial%20Performance%20Index.

"UNIDO's Competitive Industrial Performance Index 2020: Country Profiles Published | UNIDO."

Www.unido.org,

www.unido.org/news/unidos-competitive-industrial-performance-index-2020-country-profile s-published.

United Nations. "The Ten Principles | UN Global Compact." *Unglobalcompact.org*, United Nations, 14 Mar. 2019, www.unglobalcompact.org/what-is-gc/mission/principles.

"United Nations: Report on Multinational Corporations in World Development (Chapter IV - 'towards a Programme of Action')." *International Legal Materials*, vol. 12, no. 5, Sept. 1973, pp. 1109–35, https://doi.org/10.1017/s0020782900038341.

"UNITED NATIONS: REPORT on MULTINATIONAL CORPORATIONS in WORLD DEVELOPMENT (CHAPTER IV — 'towards a PROGRAMME of ACTION')." *International Legal Materials*, vol. 12, no. 5, 1973, pp. 1109–35, www.jstor.org/stable/20691150.